
REPUBI,IC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDlTOR-GENERAL

Enhancing Accountability

REPORT

OF

THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

ON

KAKAMEGA COUNTY MATERNAL CHILD
HEALTH AND FAMILY PLANNING FUND

FOR THB YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE,2023

04(cnlif L{AD| R
FNl\-x.1E

Cil€ RAP

t

U

\
\

\_^-.1
)

-]

\ \
!

'I

,)

,l



--

ts
F

o

r-

N
(
t

p
o Box 20 42-

uolE*N[tl'o^

""-- xXY
,r*

D

IMARISHA AFYA YA
MAMA NA MTOTO

COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF KAKAMEGA

(MATERNAL CHILD HEALTH AND FAMILY PLANNING FUND)

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR rHE 

'Hfi[?ffoXr'"* 
ENDED

Prepared in accordance with the Accrual Basis.of Accounting Method under the lnternational Public
Sector Accounting Standards (tPSAS)



-r

I



.,r'--tit-

-

The Kakamega County Maternal Child llcalth and Frrmily Planning Fund
Annual Rcport and !'inancial Statements lbr the ycar cnded June 30, 2023

Table of Content

1. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms ttt

2. Key Entity lnformation and Management lv

3. Board of Trustees/ Fund Administration Committee Vll

4. Management Team lX

5. Board/Fund Chairpersons Report x

6. Report of The Fund Administrator xl

7. Statement of Performance Against the County Fund's Predetermined Objectives xtl

8. Corporate Governance Statement XIV

L Management Discussion and Analysis xv

10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting xvi

11. Report of The Trustees xviii

12. Statement of Management's Responsibilities xix

13. Report of The Auditor General on the Financial Statements for The Kakamega County Maternal

Child Health and Family Planning Fund xx

14. Statement of Financial Performance for the Year Ended 30th June 2023 1

15. Statement of Financial Position As At 30 June 2023 2

16. Statement Of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 30th June 2023 3

17. Statement of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 June 2023 4

'18. Statement Of Comparison Of Budget And Actual Amounts For The Year Ended 30 June 2023 5

19. Notes to the Financial Statements 6

20. Annexes 2 7

II



'fhe Kuh:rnrega Oounty i\{aternal (lhild llcalth lnd !'amily i'}lanning Iiund
Annual Report lnd Financial Statemcnts for the ycar ended ,Iune 30, 2023

l. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

a) Acronyrns

BOM

ICPAK

IPSAS

PFM

PSASB

CORA

COB

Kshs

Board of Managemenl

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

Public Finance Managerlent

Public Scctor Accourrtrng Stunclalds Botrrd

Cornrnission on Revcnuc Allocatron

Controller of Budget

Kenya Shillings

b) Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Managemeut The key management pcrsonnel who had tlnancial responsibility
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) Key Entity Information and Management

Background informationa)

The Kakarnega County Maternal Child Health and F-arnily Planning fund derives its authority and
accountability from the Kakamega County Maternal Child Health and Farnily planning ect,iOll.
The Fund is wholly owned by the County Govemrnent of Kakamega and is jomiciled in Kenya.

The key objective of the fund is to reduce maternal and under five nroftalities through use of social
cash transfers with a visible platform.

The Fund's principal activity is to Provide a frarnework for cash transfers of authorised payrxenr to nccdy
lnothers registered in the Kakamega County Maternal Child Health and Farnily planningpiogranr;

b) Principal Activities

Provide a platfonn airned at giving incentives to expectant and lactating mothers to access health
services to: -

i incleases the nttmber of pregnant rnothers attending antenatal clinic visits;

ii. irrcrease thc tlt-tttrbcr of skillcd clclivcries in thc county hcalth firctlitics;

iii. increase the nnrnber of mothers attending postnatal clinic visits;

iv. reduce mother and child morbidity and mortality;

v. promote advocacy, cornmunication and social mobilization towards elimination of
urother to child transrnission of FIIV/AIDS irnprove nutritioll status of mothers and chilclren
below thc agc of eighrccn morrths,

vi. increase the uptake of irnmr.rnization services tbl children up to eighteen lxonths;

vii. Increase family planning uptake;

viii. create awareness on transmission, prevention arrd control of HIV/AIDs.

-



The Kakamega County I'laternal Clhild llcalth :rnd i.'amily Planning Iund
Annual i{eport lnd i'inrlncial :;l,l(ernents li)r 'iie ,.r:ur ::rded ,i ure.10, 2023

c) Board ol' Tru stecs/Fu nd ,{rlrninistratiorr (lonrnrittee

d) Ker }lanagemertt'l-ealn

e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

I
Dr. Junc Jeophita Mwajr.rma Mernber

1 Dr David Anekeya Alilah M ember

3
Ms. lrene Abucher:i M enrber

4 Ms. Ralpher okutoyi Mwenesi Member

5
Sheila Mukanzr Mernber'

(r Genvieve lmbaya Member

1 Mr Nehemiah Muhatia Musindi Mernber

I Dr. June Jeophita Mwajr.rma
Chief Olficer Frnance

) Dr. David Anekeya Alilah Chicf Oticcr Mcdical
Services

3 Ms Muyuka Antoinette Progranr Director

4 CPA Sheila Mukanzi Fuud Adrninistrator

I County Assembly Assernbly Comnrittees

2 Auditor Genelal Of flce of Auditor genelal

3 National Treasury Directorate of Accounting Services

-l Controller of budget Oltlce ol'COB

5 Cornnrission on Revenue

Allocation

Oftlce ot:CORA

-

llef Narne Position

I

Ref Name Position

Ref
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0 istered OflicesR"g

P.O. Box 36 -50100
Sahajanand Building First
floor Mumias Road
Kakamega, Kenya

g) Fund Contacts

Telephone: 0563 I 850/3 I 852/3 I 853
E-mai I : ooaran)racare@kakamesacountv. go.ke
Website ; www. kalamesa.qo.ke

h) Fund Bankers

Kenya Commercial
Bank Kenyatta
Avenue Kakamega
P.O Box 152 - 50100
Kakamega-Kenya

i) IndependentAuditors

Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Universiry Way
P.O. Box 30084
GOP 00 r00
Nairobi. Kenya

j) Principal Legal Advise r

The Anorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401 l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

k) County Attorney

County Attorney
County Head Office
Kakamega town
P.O. Box 36-50100
Kakamega, Kenya

Vt



3. Board of T rustees/ Fund Administration committee (or Any other Corporate Governance

Body for The Fund)

Dr. June Jeophita Mwajuma

Chief Officer Finance

Doctorate in Environmental Microbiology

Master of Science degree in Microbiology

Bachelor of Science deglee (BotanylZoology)
trom Kenyatta Universiry

Work experience-Labolatory Assistant at
Mumias sugar cotnpany,Mombasa polyechnic
university college as an assistant lecturer and
Currently serves as the Chief officer Finarrce and
Bud et Courl Government of Kakame ii

a

a

O

a

a

\
G-r- II

serices Coun Covernment of Kakame ll
. 12t06t1977

o Chief Nurse

a Degree in Nursing
a Work experience-22 Years working

experience as a Nurse in Public Health

Dr David Anekeya Alitah

Name Details of qualifications and experience

-

VII

a

t 1810711975

r B.Ed.(Science)

. MSc (Statistics)

. PhD (Statistics)

o Data Mining and analyics

. . Chief officer Medical Services

. Work experience-Lecturer at MMUST and
Culrently serves as the Chief officer Medical

Ms. Irene Abucheri

T
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c.

iMwenesiMs Ral her okuto

. t9t0ut973
a Counfy Immunization Coordinator
o BSc Nursing,MCH
o Work Experience-35 years as nurse

supervisor and program officer in dift-erent
Government settings.

a Sub county children's officer
a Degree in Nursing
a Work experience-23 years Working

experience

:,

Mr Nehemiah Muhatia Mu

i
)

sindi

a Clinical Instrucror MMUST
a tsSc.Physiotherapy
o Work experience-39 Years as a

physiotherapist in government faci lities

o MBA (Finance Option),
o BBM (Finance and Banlcing Option)
. CPA (K)

. Work Experience-8 Years work experience

20/06/1981a
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Sheila Mukanzi
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4. Management Team

Dr David Anekeya Alilah

a

Name Details of quali{ications and experience

Dr. June Jeophita Mwajuma

a Chief Officer Finance

Doctorate in Environmental Microbiology

Master of Science degree in Microbiology

Bachelor of Science degree (Botany/Zoology) fi'om
Kenyatta University

a

t8t07 lt97 s

B.Ed.(Science)

MSc (Statistics)

PhD (Statistics) 
I

Data Mining and analyics

Chief officer Medical Services

Lectuler at MMUST and Chief officer Medical services

a

a

s.Antoinnete Mu uka

c 1310711989

. MSC Development Studies

. BSc. Conrmunication and Public Relations

. Fund Manager

r 6 years work experience as Fund Manager

I

CPA Sheila Mukanzi

. 20/06/ l98l
o MBA (Finance Option)

o BBM (Finance and Banking Option)

. CPA (K)

o Fund Administrator

e 8 years work experience in public sector

-
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Work experience-Laboratory Assistant at Munrias
sugar cornpany.M orn basa polyechnic university
college as an assistant lecturer and Currently servcs
as the Chiefofficer Finance and Budget County
Goverrrment of Kakamega.
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I'he Kal<arnega County hlaternal Clhild I le ulth i:nd l,'arnily Plarruing lirrnd
Annual Report and l,'inancial Staternents lbr rhc ycur cndcd June 30, 2023

5. Board/Fund Ch airperson's Report

The Imarisha Afya ya Mama na Mtoto prograrn is a County Fund cstablishccl uudcr the Kakamega County
Matemal Child Health and Farnily Planning Act 20 17. lnception of this Fund was irrformed by the state of
matemal child health in Kakamega County where there was a high rnortality rate for pregnant mothers and
their children. Kakarnega County is the second most populous after Nairobi with a projected population of
2,073,926 and a yearly growth rate of 2.5o/o. Morc than half (52%) of the population is rnadc up of wornen
with 24.7o/o being wonren of chilclbearing age. Most nraternal, child health and nutrition indicators are
warttingand recltrile cl'lirrts to atltlress thcrn.'Ihe plcvirlclrcc ol'I llV anrorrq thc po;rulation aged l5-64 years
in Kenya is 5.6u1, (KAIS 2012) whcrcas thc ligurc lirl thc county is 4.'7 "1,. l'he lllV/AIDS scourge has
becotne the greatest ctrntributol Lo child dcprivation ancl high clcpcndency ratio in l(akarnega with urany
orphaned children deprived of their rights. Measures to address and reverse these trends infbnned the
County Coverntnent's initiative to launch the Matemal Neonatal Child Health and Nutrition Program to
address accessibility to service and knowledge lap which emerged as the main barriers to service.

Since the inception of this program, approxirnatcly 40,000 mothers have benefited from thc program.
UNICEF has been ploviding techrrical support to the Irnarisha Atya ya Manra rra Mtoto witlr an airl ro
achieve its objective ol' reducing ntaternal antl chilcl nrortality through increasecl denrand tbr impact
iutetventions such as increased uptake of tl.re I st ancl 4ttr ANC visit, skillecl bilth atrendance and lutl
immunization of children by rernoving financiaI and social barriers for Womcn of Rcproductive Age (WRA)
to accessing quality services available. In providing the technical assistance to the developrnent ot'the
program MIS, UNICEF Kenya, contracted an Individual Consultant to support the County to construct a
Proxy Means test and principal component analysis cut off points for the targeting module.

Thc plogrartr is strivinq to rvork rvith othcr l<cy stal<cholrlcrs ancl partncrs in thc county to pool enough
rcsoLtl'ces to itrcrcasc progl'an) coveragc and rrriplovc nratr:rnal chilcl health in Kakamega County. Otlrcr
future outlook of the Fund is to develop a business rnodel to link the rnothers ibr econornic empowerment;
integlation of Family planning to thc program service delivery; improving the prograrn MIS by linking it to
the National Single Registry and creation of a fricndly cnvironrnent for adolescent and young mothers. Thc
program intends to look at ways ol incorporating child protection in their service delivery and improve
linkages to other social services such as National Health lnsurance Fund and National Social Security Fund,
Establish comnrttuity atltninistratiou Lrnits tbr couuty govenrnrent clecision uraking and participation, recruit
beneficiary mothcrs to bc Conrrrrunity llcalth Voluntccrs and inrprovc cooldination mcchanisms through
the social protecti<.rn secletariat and linkages to other social selvices fbr sustainability.

(,+&rl$fi/f,o^" ("q Il)7 tolSName Dr David Anekeya Alilah Signature

Chairperson of the Board/Fund



The Kakamega County i\{lternal Child llcalth :rnd iilmily l)lanning Fund
Annual Report and Finnncial Statements fbr {he 11'xv ended ,Iune 30, 2023

6. Report of The Fund Administrator

The Kakarnega County Matemal Child Health and Family Planning Act,20l7, An Act of the

County Assernbly of Kakarnega to provide for a framework to support the Kakarnega Couuty

Matemal Child Health and Family Planning.

Mandate
The Fund dclives its powels fiour Thc l(al<anrcgti Ciounty Maternal Chilcl Hcalth and Family Planning

Act 201 7, besides the constitutiou o1- Kenya

lts cole firnctious are:

a) promotion of the health of the rnother and child from conception to the time the child
achieves the age of eighteen morlths,

t ) promotion of family planning,

c) Irnprovirrg nutrition status ol nrothers ancl children below the age of eighteen months.

Management of funds
The Fund's main sources of revenue include disbursement frorn the county treasuly. The funds are

utilized on:

a) Paying registered needy pregnant mothers at the scheduled points ofcare,

b) Support operatlons and rnanagenrerrts of the Fund,

c) Support Farnily Plannrng activitics.
d) Support HIV/r\ids prevcutiorr activitrcs.

Operation of the Fund
The Kakamega County Matemal Child Health and Family Plaming Account at Kenya

Commercial Bank is the rnain operation account. The Fund received 30,000,000 from the

County Treasury. Cash Transfer to Mothers anrountecl to Ksh 18,81 1.184 while the cash and

cash equivalents as at 301h June 2023 rvas Kslr 12.043.602.

XI
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'l'he Kahamcga (-)ounty [!laternal Child I lealth :irrd l,':unily Planning liund
Anrtual ltcport and liin:rnciul Staterne,nts ti,r lhe vcar errded,lunc30,2023
1 Statement of Perlbrmance Against the County Fund's Predetermined Objectives

Section 164 (2) (t) of the Public Financc Managcrrrcnt Act,20 l2 recpircs that, at thc end of
each financial year, the Accounting ofllcer when plcparing tlnancial statellrents of eaclr County
Govemment Entity Covelnureut el)tltics in accordance with the standards and fon-nats
prescribed by the Public Sector Accountrng.Standards Board includes a statement olthe county
govemment entity's pcrformance against predctcnnined objectives.

The key developurent objectives of the Kakarlega Maternal Chilcl Health and Family Planning
Furrcl as per the strategic plan lirr flnancitl ycar 2022-2023 itre to:

a) Providing a l'r'amework tbr cash transl'ers ol'authorized paylnerlt to needy rnothers

registered in The Kakamega County Maternal Chitd Heatth and Farnily Planning

fund

b) Providing a platforrn aimed at giving incentives to cxpectant and lactating rnothers

to acccss health serv ices

c) lncreasing tarnily plannirrg uptake

d) Creating awal'eness on transrnissiorr, prevcrrtion and colltrol of l-llV/AIDS

Progress on attainment of Strategic development objectives

Below we provide the progress on attaining the statecl objectives

luralislra

Afya ya

Mama na

Mtoto

l) -l'tl 
1-r 

lo v irlc u

tl'arnework fbr'

cash transfers

of authorized

payulerlt to

ncecly niotlrcrs

registered in

the Kakanrega

County

Matcrnal Child

llcirlth iLnrl

Farrrily

Planuing tund

()ngtrrrrrr

lcgistiation of'

mothers to the

progra[n

I N Lrrnbcr ol

nlothcrs

registered

33 19 urothcrs have

bccn rcgistcrcd

xil

Program Objcctivc Ou tcomc Indicritor Perfb rm an cc



'I'he Koknmcga (,ounty M:rtcrnal (lhild licalth;rnrl ifumily l,lanning Fund
:\nnual Iteport and ['inancial Sl:rtements {or (he lcar cnrled .Iune 30 ,21t23

b) Prrx,iclc a

platloun airned

at giving

incentives to

expectant arrd

lact a t ing

ntotlrels t0

access health

services

c) lncrcase la nr ily

p la nn ing

uptake

d) Create

awarcncss on

transmission,

prcvcntion ancl

control ol

I]IV/AIDS

Using tlrc

Managcnrcrrt

In fonnation

Systenr to

ir.rclease access

()l lllc l)rog|ant to

nrothC[s

(lorrductirrr.l

sensitizatio|t

meetings orl

larnily planning

uptake

C'orrclucting

scnsitization

lneetings on

I-IIV/AIDS

a\va rencss

I rn prrlrrcrn crr t

of thc

management

information

systenl

No of

rl1ot hers

sensitized

No of'

rurothers

sensitized

Rcgistration of mothers

on-going acloss the 39

health facilities.

-13 l9 rnothcrs

scrrsitized on lantily

plann ing

i3 i9 nrothers

scnsitized

Facilities are doing

scnsitization on

IIIV/AIDS

-
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tt Corporate Governance Statement

The Kakamega County Maternal Chilcl Hcalth and F'amily Planning tund rcrnains cornmitted to
the highest standards ofcorporate governance and business ethics. Good corporate govcrnance
practices are essential to the detivery of long rerm and sustainable stakeholder and shareholder
value. The fund continues to adhere to its obligations as a public entiry in Kenya in compliance
with. The Kakamega County Maternal Child Health and Family Planning Bill, 2017 and public
Finance Management Act,2012. We continued to achieve high levels of corporate governance
by focusing orr the following areas:

e) Providing a framework fbr cash transt'ers of authorized payment to needy mothers
registered in The Kakarnega County Maternal Chilcl l-lealth and Family Planning
fund

f) Providing a platform aimed at giving inccntives to expectant and lactating mothers
to access health serryices

g) lncreasing family plannirlg uptake

h) creating awareness on transmission, prevention and control of HIV/AIDS

Fund committee
The Fund comrnittee is critical to the funds' govcrnance t'ramework antl otlers guiclance on
matters inctuding but not limited to ones described in Kakamega Counry Maternal Child
Health and Family Planning Act,20li secrion I l.

Fund committee Composition
I ) Officer responsible for health services;
2) Chief of'ficer responsible for finance:
3) One person who has at least a first degree in social sciences with experience in social

Protection;
4) One person who has at least a tirst degree in a health related with experience in

maternal and child health;
5) One person who has at least a first degree in a health related fielcl with experience in

comnrunity health:

6) The Fund Administrator who shall be an ex-olllcio member and secrctaFr' to the
comm ittee;

7) One person who has at least a first degrec in a health related field with experience in
prevention and control of HIV and Sexually Transmitted Infections.

XIV
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

The Kakamega County Maternal Child tlealth and Farnily Planning fund contributes to the
reduction olgcographic. economic, social and cultural barriels to access to health and nutrition
services. The prograrn prornotes behavior change lor secking sl<illed health service arrd
attendance on sexual and reproductive health, l'anrily planning, HIV and AIDS prevention,
nutl'ition, child care, and saf€ and responsible rnotherhood on pregnant womerl and nrothers of
children under l8 rnonths. By the end of tlris quarter of the2022-2023 Financial year, the funcl
has registered 1,626 rnothers to the progralr. 'l'his low numhers can be attributed to the fact that
the program MIS cloud hosting contract had not been renewed.

HEALTH INDICATORS FOR KAKAMEGA COUNTY

rEr)

I t:0

140

10{l

60

.i0

169.7

93.1
92

81.8 83.3

74 I 7.1. (r

44.2

)i)t,

tst ANC

Cleating awareness on family planning uptal<e. transmission, prevention and control of
HIV/AIDS is another key objective of the Kakanrega County Maternal Child Health and
Family Planning fund. This is done through sensil.ization and col'porate social responsibility
activities at the tacility level. The prograrn has carried out this activiry to the 39 health facilitiei
across the County during registration of the rnothers with key messages on increased
impofiance of the lst and 4th ANC clinic visit. skilled birth delivery and fuli immunization of
children by rernoving financial and social barriers for Women of Reproductive Age to
accessing quality services available, HIV/AlDs awareness and Farnily Planning uptake. In this
quanerl626 mothers were sensitized on faurily planning uptake and HIV/AIDS awareness.

-
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I'he l(aklrnega (-'ounty Maternal Child i icalth arrd l;anrily l,lanning l.'und
Aunual Itcport:rnd l,'irrancial Staterrents i'or the ycar ended June -J0,2023

10. EnvironmentalandSustainabilityReporting

The Kakartrega Cotruty Materual Clrild t-lcllrh arrd lrautily Planning lirrrcl extsts to prolnote
health among all rvomett ancl es;recially thc rvcll-beirrg ul'pregnaut ancl new-btlrn through the
provision of health setvices. This is our purl)osci the clriving tbrce behincl evcrything we do. It's
what guides us to dcliver our stratcgy, rvhich is lbundcd on 4 pillars: providc a liamcwork for
cash transfers to needy tnothers by providing.a platlbnn airned at giving incerrtives to expectant
and lactating mothers Io access health services; a) promotion ol the lrealth of the rnother and
child from concc;ttion to thc tinrc thc ch ild achicvcs thc agc of eightecn months; irrcreasc farnily
planning uptakc arrtl Crcittc ilwillcncs:i orr tliul:\nrrssrurr, plcvcntion and corrtrol ot'HlV/AIDS

putting the custonrer/C itizcn tl st, dcliveling lelevanr goods ancl services, and irnltloving
operational excellence. Below is a brief highlight of our.achievements in each pillar

l. Sustainability strategy and prolile -
The prograrn is striving to work with othcr key stakeholders and paltners in the cor.rnty to pool
enough rcsources to increase program covcragc and irnprovc matemal child hcalth in Kakarnega
County. Other future outlook ol the F'und is to clevclop a busiuess model to link the urothers tbr.
economic clnpowennent; itrtegratiorr ol Farnrly planning to the prograrn service delivery;
irnproving the plogrartt M lS by linking it to thc National Single Registry and crcation of a liiendly
environment for adolescent and young lrothers.

2. Environmental perlbrmance
Outline clearly, environmental policy guiding thc organisation, provide eviderrcc of the policy.
Otrtlirle sttccesses, shot tcotnir.tqs, ef'forts to uranirgc biodivelsity, waste ulanagcment policy and
eflbrts to reducc environntcrrtirl inryrrct ol'tlrc orgrrnisrrtion's pr.oducts.

3. Employe e rve ll'are
The Ministry ol Health at the County level is responsible lbr the overall rnanagemenr and
irnplementation of the Lnarisha Afya ya M ama na Mtoto Program. It ensures the plovision oI
standard quality MNCH services in thc 39 Irnarisha Health Centers (lHCs) and the
irnplernentatiort of the MNCH Cornmunication Strategy ar rhe heahh f'acilities aud the
Courmunity Health Department levels. The Health Managelnent Strucrure is heaclect by the
County Executivc Cornrrittcc fol I{calth (('EC Ilcaltlr) in thc Ministcl olHcalrh tlrat guidcs the
implementation of the h.trarislta Atya ya Manra na Mtoto Program iiom the policy pcrspective.
The Health Coordinating Structure is headecl by the County Health Managetnenr Team (CHMT).
The CHMT ensures quality and homogeneous MNCII and Imarisha Afya ya Mama na Mroto
Program set'vices and processes. This body is in charge of tlrc stt'ategic and operational planning,
sr.lppol'tive supervisiou, nronitoring and rcvicw o1' health service delivel] in the County. lt
ensures proper Coordiltatioll is betrveen tlre Reproductive l-lealth, Nutrition, HIV and AIDS
Prevention, and cornmunity health stl'uctul'cs the cffective functioning of MNCH scrvice- related
provision at thc IHC and thc corrrtrurritics. -l-hc lirnr;tions of tlrc MCH/FP Furrd Managernent
Committee are to receive and consider ap;rlications liont eligible benef iciaries of the Kakaniega
County Maternal Chilcl I lealth and Fanrily l'lanrring ancl lr.narisha Aflya ya Mama na Mroto
l)rograms, 'l'hcy validate cornmurrity hcaltlr units

xvr



i'he I(akamega (.ounty lrl'aternal i.hild ji, rrllh ;r;rd i :unily I'lunning i'rrnd
,t"rutual lieport and Financial Slrltr..ironls ,r i1e ":rr lnr!ed,lune 1(). 20:3

and cornuruuity health volurlteers and pay stipencls to eligible volunteers, intblm the comnlunity
about thc Fund and the Imarisha Afya ya Marna na Mtoto Program, nraintain propel'records of the
colnnrittce affairs and accounting.

Ma rket place practices-
Tlrc olgarrization sltoul(l otrtlinc ils cl'torts to:
;r1 l{cspt,rrsihlc conrpclrlr{rr) I'rirr rrr r

Pnolity is grvcn to thc l)(x)r'cst irntl ntosl vulrrclable: i) Under aged ii)
Disability iii) HIV positivc iv) Malnounshcd (MUAC)

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
The progrant strictly lollorvs tlre Public Procurernent and Asset
Disposal Act and all procurernent at'e done at the County procrlrelltent
offices

c) Thc luncl procures irnd rlistrihLrtes c:ornnrrrrricati<lrr rnaterial to create
cotttplcte progranl a\\'arcrrcss lo tlrc gerrcral public.

tl) Ploc[rct stcwardslr ip-
Thc prograrr is a right lol tlrc poorest and nlost vulnerable women
residents of the Kakanrega County who are pregnarlt or with children
under I 8 months of age

Corporate Social Responsibility / Contmunity Engagements

Tlre organisation gives rletirils rrl'CS[{ activitres carrictl out in the year ancl the
ittrltact t t't the socicty. ( itt c e r rrlcncc <rl' c(rnlnlunrty cngxgcnte nt itrclrrdtng
clralitablc givrng (cuslr ;rnrl rratcrurl). ( or'polatc Social lrrvcstnrcrrt arrd clthcl lorrtrs
ol' cornnrunity engaSeutcnts.

I
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ll. Report ofThe Trustees

The Trustees submit theil report together with the audited flnancial statements for the year ended June 30,2023
which show the state of thc Fund affairs.

Principal uctivitics

Providc a tiamework tbl cash tlansl'crs of autlrotizcd pa)/r'ucnl to ncedy nrothcts regisrclcd in the
Kakarnega Courrty Matenral Child Health and Farnily Planning Proglam;

Provide a platfonn aimed at giving incentives to expcctant and lactating mothers to access health
services to: -

i.increases the number of plegnant mothers attending anrcnatal clinic visits;

ii. increase the uunlbcr olskillcd clcliveries in rhc cuuury hculth lircilities;

iii. increasc thc nunrbcr o['nrothers atrcnding postnrtal clirric visits;

iv. reduce molhcr and child morbidity and monality;

v. promote advocacy, communication and social rnobilization towards elimination of mother to child
tratrsmission of HIV/AIDS inrprove nutrition status of nrolllcrs and childrcn belorv the agc ol'eighteen
nlontlrsi

Vii. increase tlle uptake ul itttnttrn izat rort scrvrcer lor elrrltlrcn Lrp to ciglltccrl ntoltl.llsi

Viii. Incrcasc family planning uptake;

(b) Crente awareness on transmission, preventiou and control of HtV/AtDs.

Rcsults

Tlte rcsults of tlrc f-und lilr thc yell cndcd.lunc.l0,202l :rrc scr out on pagc l-5

Trustces

The members ofthe Board ofTrustees who served duriug the year are shown on page V. l'hcre were no changes
in the Board during the financial year undel rcvicw:

Audltors

Thc Arrditor (jctrctal rs tc:p,.ttrstblc lur tlre :,trtutor\ inr(lrt rrl tltc l'rrrrtl irr trccurtlurrcc witlt .,\rucl\:129 ul lllc
Constitution ol'Kerrya antl the l)rrblic Autlrr Acr l0 I5.

By Order ol the Bo

(,*Wl,
Chair of the Board/Fund Adrninistrntion Conrmittce

Drte: d!oq l.oaS

ard
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12. Statemcnt of Management's Responsibilities

Section l(r7 of'thc Public l'inancc Managcrlcnl Act. l0l2 r'crluilcs that, at tltc end of each financial
year, the Aclrttirtistrator ol'a Clounty Public lruud cstablishecl by the l(akanrega County Matenral
Child I{ealth and Farnily Planning Act, 2017 shall prepare financial staternents for the Fund in
accordance with the standards and fornrats prcscribcd by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board.

Thc Adrninistlator of thc County Public Fund is rcsponsiblc fol thc prcpalation and prcsentation of
thc Ftrnd's firtancial sta(cnrcnts, whiclr givc ir lnrc anrl lair vicw ol'tlrc statc ol'al'lirirs of thc F'und for
attcl as at thc crtcl of thc {rrrancial year crrdccl on .lrrlrc 10. 202.1. This rcsponsitrility itrcludes: (i)
ntitintainirtg acleqttate linancial nranagenlcnt illran tc n rcr'rts antl crrsurirrg that these continue to tre
effectivc throughout thc rcporling period; (ii) nraintaining proper accounting rccolds, which disclose
witli reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Fund; (iii) designing,
implernenting and ntaintaining intemal corrtrols relevallt to the preparation and fair presentation of
thc financial staternents, and ensuring that they arc frcc fi'orn rnatcrial misstatenrents, whether dne to
crror ol lraud; (iv) satb_euarding the assets o1'tlrc l--uncl; (v) sclecting and applying appropriatc
accoutlting policics; and (vi) ulakiug accourrting cslirnates that are reasonable in the circurnstances.

l'hc Adnrinistrator of thc County Public Fund acccpts rcsponsibility for thc Fun<j's financial
statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by
reasonable and prudeut judgements arrd estirrates, in confomrity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act,20l2.The
Adrninistrator of the Fund is of the opinion that thc Fund's financial statements givc a true and fair
vieu' of the state of Fund's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the
Ftrnd's finattcial positiort as at that date. Thc Aclnrinislrator hrrthcr confirrn the completeness of the
accouttling tccords rttaintainc<l lbl thc FLrncl, rvlrich lravc bccn rclicd up<ln in thc plcparatron of thc
l;trnd's financial statelnents as well as the adcclrurcy ol'thc syslents of internal flnancial control.

In preparing the financial staterrents, the Achnirrrstrator of the County Public Fund has assessed tlie
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern and disclosed, as applicable, matters relating to the use
olgoing concen) [rasis of preparation of tlre financial sratenlents. OR

Nothing ltas cotrrc to tlre attention of thc Adrnirristlatol to indicate that thc Fund will rrot rcrnain a
going concern fbl at least the next twelve ntonths liom the date of'this slatentellt.

Approval of thc finaucial statements

The Fund s financial statelnents were approvecl by the Board on al o9 I 2023 and
sisrred on its behalfbv: A

fi*-barf,tM....
Administrator of thc Countv Public Fund

xtx
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NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KAKAMEGA COUNTY MATERNAL
CHILD HEALTH AND FAMILY PLANNING FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Ac|,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kakamega County Maternal
Child Health and Family Planning Fund set out on pages 1 to 30 which comprise of the

ended 30 June, 2023



I
statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kakamega County Maternal Child Health and Family Planning Fund as at 30
June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Public Finance Managemenl Acl, 2012 and the Kakamega County
Maternal Child Health and Family Planning Act,2017 .

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kakamega County Maternal Child Health
and Family Planning Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics.
I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Performance and Gontrol

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects approved receipts
budget and actual on comparable basis amounts of Kshs.64,244,845 and
Kshs.30,000,000 respectively, resulting to under-funding of Kshs.34,244,845 or 53% of
the budget. Similarly, the statement reflects actual expenditure of Kshs.35,218,448
against approved budget of Kshs.64,244,845 resulting to under-performance of
Kshs.29,026,397 or 45o/o of the budget.

The under-funding and under-performance affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

My opinion however, is not modified on the effect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kakomega County Maternal Child Health and Fomily Planning Fund for the year
ended 30 June, 2023
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Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficrent and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using applicable basis of accounting unless Management is
aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease its operations.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kakamega County Maternal Child Health and Family Planning Fundfor the year
ended 30 June, 202 3
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Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors
compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective
processes and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation
to governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a rvhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1 )(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Kakamega County Maternal Child Health and Fomily Planning Fundfor the year
ended 30 June, 202 3
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amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may

occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect

misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of

effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

Fund's policies and procedures may deteriorate'

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, int6ntional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists relaled to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's

ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue

to sustain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the

underlyhg transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation'

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and

business activities oi the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements'

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances'

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and silnificant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that are identified during the audit.

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Kakamega County Materna
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I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate wrtn them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

08 February,2024

Report of the Auditor-General on Kakamega County Maternal Child Health and Family Planning Fund for the year
ended 30 June, 2023
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The Kakamega County Maternal Child I.leal(h an<l Farnily Planning Fund
Annual Report nnd !'inancial Statements for tlrc ]'ear ended .Iunc 30, 202314, Statenrent of Financial performance for the Year Ended 30 June 202J

(Tlre notes sel otrt ol) pages Iti to 26 lolnr arr integral palt ofthese Filancial Staternents)

Name: Dr t)avicl Anel<eya Alilnh Nitrne: CPA Charles Shikul<u
Fu nd Accou rr tan t
ICPAK Me mber Numberr 13001

Ad nrinistrator of thc Fund

40.t)09,430

Public Contributions and Donations
450 060'l'ransfers From the County Govemment 2 30 000,000 70,000 ,000

-10 000 000 7t 450 060

Fines, Penalties and Other. I_evies l

Bxpenses

Employee Costs 525,071 6 t 4,s90
Use ofgoods and sen,ices

4

5 14,924 5'17 32,380,892

l,lli5.45-'] 4,583,089
pgprec iation and Anrortization [rxperrsc

(-'as h Tlarrsler to lv,[othcr.s

(i

I-otal Expenses
-15 218 448

t{t,3ti.r..r4?

78,488,001
Other Gains/l,osses

Su rplus/(Deficit) for the year
5 218 448 7 037 941

.1

Ilcvcn uc Iironr Non-Exchan gc 1.rausactiorr s

i
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I'he Kaharrrt'ga (..oun(v Vla(e.nal ( triiri i!r,.;,iil: rrd !,trtnilt, l,lanning l.urrtl
Annual Re

I

ort iln(l liinalcial Staterue rs iirr lht year en<led Junc 30, 2023

15. Statement of Financiul Position As rt 30 June 2023

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements tbnn an int
r.rl'thc financial state rlents. 'fhe 

e ntity finarrciul statcrlrents were app roved on ,) z I "'t
and sigred by

al pan
2023

/,1
Name: Dr David Anekcya Alilah Narnc: CPA Charles Shikuku

Fund Accountant
ICPAK Member Number: t3001

2

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash 8 t2,043,602 t6,284,59"7

Accounts Receivables 9 488,000 80,000
'I'otal current assets 12,53 I ,602 16,364,597

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipntent il 4,6t7,985 6,003,43 9

Total non- current assets 4,61 7,985 6,003,439
Totnl Assets 17,149,587 22,368,036

Liabilities

Trade and Othcl Payablcs tlor-n Excharrgc
Transactions

Clurrent l.ia hilit ics

Non-Current Liabilities
Lo Tenn Portion of Borowin S

Total Liabilities

Net Assets 17,149,587

Revolvi Ijuntl

Accurnulated Fund 3t,012,934 31,0t2,934
Accurnulated Su lus (13,863,346) (tl,(r44,898)
-I'otal Net Assets and t.iabilities t7,149,587 22,368,,tJ36

Adnrinistrator of the Fund

l)r'sciiption Note
Fy 2022/2023 Fy 2021/2022

E

Equivalents



'I'he Kakamega County Maternal Child l{calth rnd l,'anrill,Planning Fund
Annuirl Rcport nrrd Fin:rnci.rl Statcrncnts lirr thc vcirr ctrdcd,Iurre 30.2023

16. Statenrent Of Changes in Net Asscts for the yenr cnded 30 June 2023

Ilalance as at I ,Iuly 2021 3r,0r2,934 (t,646;709) 29,366,3t2
S u rplus/(deficit) for the period (7,037.941 ) (7,037,e4 r )
Prior Year Adjustment 2021/2022 1() ?(? 39,752

Itcvaluation gain

Balance as at 30.lune 2022
.1 1.012.931 ({t,644,89'i) 22,,368,036

llalance as at I .l u11, 2022 I l.0l 2,934 (8,644,898) 22,368,036

Surplus/(dcfi c it) tbr thc pcriod (5,2 r 8,448) (5,2 r 8,448)

Prior Year Arljustrnent 2022/2023

Revaluation gatn

Balance as at 30 June 2023 3 I,012,934 (13,853,346) I 7, 149,588

.7

-r

r\ccurtrula(rtl
I , l.'rrnd

r\tcurnulatcrl
: '..surplus

Total

I(ShsKShl
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17, Statement of Cash Flows lbr'l'he Year Ended 30 June 2023

Recei ts fi'orn other o cratl r') ilctrvltres
-l'otal 

recci (\ 71,450,0(10.00
Pa n)t n ts

Em lo ee C0sts

Ploceeds lrom rcvo lvirr

Additional bollorvirr
Rc rncnt o1'borrowrrt

1-

l

il
I

Net cash llou's used in linancin a c tiv it ics

Cash and cas h c uivalents at 30 J une 2(123 12,043,602

(PSn SB has prcsclihctl tlrc dircct nlclh(r(l t'l r'rrslr ll.rv l)rcptr.lrtion/ prcscntatiorl lor all entities
undcr the IPSAS ace rLrirl [lrsis ot'lreeotrnrrrru.i

4

------1---
Cash flows from o nctiviti0seratin
Recei ts

Public contlibutions antl tlorrat ions 1,450,060

Transfers from the count ovcrnmcllt 2 30,000,000 70,000,000
lnterest receivt:d

30,000 000

525 o'7 | (6 r4,590)
Use ofCoods and services 5 (t4,924,57'7) (32,380,892)

6 4,583,089
Cash transfer to Mothers 7 ( r 8,383,347) (40,909,430)

(33,832,995) ('73,1)04,912)

(2,4S4,n52)(3,832,995)

(40ti,000) I ,919,5999

Nct crsh lluws li'orrr l!!r,r':lti!!&:r c ti vi t_i_es

Chan rta l-l{ccc iva b lesCires in workrrr

Chan ablcses in workin ita l- [) aCa 39,752

(4,240,995) (495,501)
Cush flows from investin activities

Incnt an (ilar1t, c Lll (4,464,40t)

t-- -

Intlrlr iblc assets

I)roeectls I i'oLg st{9_o !19pg1t1,. p Lr r r r,.t _cqrr i p r rrt, r r r

tirl replryrncrrtsPt occcds ti onr loarr )Irrcr
Loan disbursenrents ald out
Net cash flo*'s used in investin activities (4,464,4t)t\

Cash flows fronr finuncin activities

in cash & cash E u iva lentsNet increase/ d ec rca sc 14,24tJ,995)
Cash ald cash equivalent s at I July 2022 8 16.,284,597 2t,244,49<)

N 16,284,597

tirnrl rccc rpts

Depreciation

Purchase ol nrooctlv

(4,959,902)
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I8. Statemcnt Of Comparison Of Budget And Actual Amounts For the 
"r'ear 

ended june J0,2023.

34 44 845 47%

34,244,81) 47%

0

t4 929 970h

356.746 82%

Cash Trans ler to i\lothcrs t9 M0, l7-i 19%

Depreciation and .'\ rttorti zatton
Lr cns9 6,6t4,541 t7%

29 02 9'7 55%

Budget notes

l. The unclerperfomunce and (Jnderabsorption v,as contributed greatly b) delay and late disbursement tn exchequcr tlisltursements

front the TreasLrry as it's the Main source o/ fimding to tlte fund.

l

Revenue
30,000.00064,244,84564,2M.845Transfers From CountY Govt
30,000.00061,244,84564.244,845Total Incomc

Expenses
525.071I 540,000540.000Employee Costs

14.921.571r 8.28 r,123r8,281,321Use of goods and sen'iccs
1 8,3 8i._.;-17i :t.tzt,szz37,423,522

l.i8i.-li is,000,000tJ,000,000

61,244,845 35.2 18.,r.1864.214,845'l-otal Expenditurc
(s,2 l8,1r8)Su rplus For thc Pcriod

Capital expenditu rc

.,\ctual ort
co nrpa ra blcFinal

basis
I(shsKshs : Kshs
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19. Notes to the Financial Statements

l. General Inlbrmation

The Kakarnega Cotrnty Maternal Clrild Health and lrarnily Planning Funcl is establishecl by
and derives its atrthority and accountability tionr tlre Kakanrega County Marernal Child
Health and Fanrily PlanningAct 2017. The entity is wholly owned by rtre Kakarnega Coupty
Government and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is reduction of
geographic, economic, social and cultural barliers to access to health and nutrition serviccs.

2, Statement ol cornpliance antl basis ol';tr.cpitr.:rtion

The Fund's linarrcial statenrents have been preparcd in accordance with and comply with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The financial statements are

presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the Fund. The

accountillS policies have beeu consistently applied to alt the years presented. The financial

statelnents have been prellared on the basls ol'historrcal cost. unless stated otherwise. The cash

flow statetncnt is plcllalcd using the clilcct nrethocl. Thc tirrancial st:ltclncnrs arc prepared on

accrual basis.

3. Adoption of new and revised standards

(i) New und umended .\tun.lurd.\ untl int<,t.1tt.ctutiorr.;. irt i.t..t.rrt,
ettcled 30 Jurta 202-l

l)ut not t'(t e//ective in lhe ),eur

IPSAS 4l: Financial

Instruments Applicable: I't January 2023

The ob.jective ol'll)SAS 4l is to establish principles tbr the financial

'eporting 
<lftinancial assers and liabilities that will presenr l'elevanr and

uscful infbrmarion to uscls of'flnancial statcrncnts fbr their assessment

of the arnounts, tinring and uncertainty of an Entity's futur.e cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users ol' Ilnancial stateulenrs with rnore useful 
i

I intblrnirtion tharr l[,SAS 29. lrv

. Applyinu a singlc classitication aucl rncasurcntcrrt rnodel for

frnancial asscrs that cousiders the characreristics r-rf the asset,s

cash flows and the objective lor which rhe asset is held;

. Applying a singlc tbrwald-looking cxpcctcd credit loss model

6
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IPSAS 42: Social

[]cncilts

A:ncndments to Othcr

IPSAS lesultrng from

IPSAS 41, Financial

Instrunrents

that is applicablc to all financial instrunlcnts subject to

irnpainnent testing; alld

. Applying an irnproved hedge accounting rnodel that broadens

tltc ltcdgirrg iln iurtcllrcnts irt scopc of thc guiclancc. Thc nrodcl

rlevelol-rs a \lr'on! linli bctrvccn arr Lirrtity's lisk rttarragenient

strategies and the accounting treatlllellt tbl instruments held as

part of the risk rnanagcrncnt strategy.

(State the impact o.f'the stundard to the Entity if relevant)

Applicablc: l'r ,lnnunrv 2()2J

Thc objcctivc ot'this Standarcl is to irnplovc tlrc lclcvancc, faitlrfr.rl

representativeness and conrparability of the infornlation that a

reporting Entity plovides in its financial statelreuts about social

benefits. The infornration provided should help users of the financial

statcnlcnts ancl gcncra l -pr-rqrosc tinancral lcl'rorts asscss :

(a) Thc rratulc of such social benefrts provitlcd by the E,ntityl

(b) The key features ol- the operation of those social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social bcncfits provided on the Entity's

fiuancial perfolrnarrce, financial position and cash flows.

(Statc tlre impact o./.the stundard to the Entitlt if relewnt)

Applicable: 1't .lanuary 2023

a) Arnendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

componerlts of [rorrowing costs wltich were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Anrcnclnrcrrts trr IPSAS 30, rcgartling illustrativc exarnples on

hedging arrcl cru-<lit rrsk which were inadvcl'teutly omitted when

IPSAS 4l rvas iss trerl.

c) Arncndrncnts to IPSAS 30, to updatc thc guidauce for

accounting lor financial guarantee colltracts which were

inadvertently ornitted when IPSAS 4 [ was issued.

Anrendnrents to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

7
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nancial instrur.ncnts on initial adoption of accrual basis IpSAS which

wcrc rrratlvcltcntly ornirtccl rvhe rr l[)SAS 4l '"vas issuccl.

(State the intpuct ol'tfie stun(lord to the Entit), ('relevunt)

fi

Othel improvcments

to IPSAS

(ii) New ancl antenclecl
endecl 30 June 202

Applicahle lrt January 2023

c IPSAS 22 Disclosure o/'Financial lnformation about the Genera!

G ove r n nt c n t Se c' I t t r'.

Amenclments to rctcr ro thc latest Systcm of National Accor.rnts (SNA

2008).

. IPSAS 39: Entployee BeneJits

Now deletes thc ternl composite social security benefits as it is no

longel cletined in tPSAS.

. IPSAS 29:. l.'inancial instruments: Recognition and

M eas u rcnr en t

Standard no longer included in the 202 I IpSAS handbook as it is now

supersedcd by IPSAS 4l which is applicablc fiom I'r January 2023.

State the inrpuct tt/'thc stunltrd to the Entity iJ'relewnt

stanclords antl interpretutions in issue but not yet e/fectit,e in the year
3.

IPSAS 43 Applicuble I't ,lunuur.1, 2025

The starrrlard scrs out the principlcs fbr the recognition,

mcasurclrcnt, pl'cscntation, and disclosure of lcases. The objcctivc is

to ensr.ll'e that lcssccs antl lessors provicle relevallt inlbnnatiou in a

nrannel thar luithlirlly tcpresents those transactions. This

inl'olrlltion givcs u busis lirl uscrs ot'tinanciul strrtclncnts to asscss

thc cii'ect that lcascs havc uu the flnancial position, tlnancial

perfonnance and cashflows ofan Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

intbnnation on lighr ofusc assets ancl lcasc liabilitics.

Stute thc c.t?cctc intput.t ol tlra stuttdard to the Lntitlt if'relawrnt

Applicultlc I'' Juttuurl' 2025

The Standard recluile s,

tl

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets Held

Standard dateand inrpact

impact:Eft'ective and
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fbr Sale and

Discontinuecl

Operations

Assets that meet thc critcria to be classificd as held for sale to be

rneasured at the lo\\,er o1'callyirrg arroultt and lair valne less costs to

sell and tlre dcpreciutiorr ol'such assets to cease and:

Assets that rneet the clitcria to be classified as held for sale to be

prcsclltcd scpal'atcly in thc statclnent nf finarrcial position ancl thc

results of discontinuecl operatiolls to be preseuted separately in the

slatenrent ol fi nanciaI Pclhllrttartce.

Statc the expected inptct o.f the slandut'tl to the Entity if relevant

(iii) Iia rlv ndoption ol'stlntlards

The Kakamega County Maternal Child Hcalth arrcl Farnily Planning Fund did uot early - adopt

any new or amerrded standards in the tlnancial yeal cnded june 2023.

9
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4.Signilicant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i, Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transl'ers l'rorn othcI governnlcnt entities

Revetrttes frour non-exchallge trallsactions with other governnlcnt entities are nteasured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control of thc asset (cash, goods, services and property) if
the transfer is free fi'otn conditions and it is probable that thr: economic benefits or sclice
potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and oan be measured reliably.

ii. Revenue li'orn exchange trlnsactions

lnterest incornc

lnterest income is accmed using the ct'tcctive yield rnethod. The effective yield discounts
estimated futttre cash receipts through the cxpected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying alnount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to detennine
interest income each period.

Dividen ds

Dividends or sirnilar distlibutions rrr.rst be rccognized when the shareholder's ol the Entity's
right to receive payntents is established.

Rental income

Rental incorne arising fi'om operating leases on invcstlnent ploperlies is accotrnted tbr on a
stlaight-line basis over the lease rernrs atrtl irrclLrdetl in revctrue.

b) Budget inlbrrnltiorr

The original budget for FY 2023 was approved by the County Assernbly. Subsequent revisions
or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific
approvals from the appropriatc authoritics. Thc additionat appropriations are added to the
original budget by rhe entity upon receiving thc respective applovals in order to conclude the
tinal budget. Accordingly, the Fund recorrlerl atklitiorral appropriations of budget following
the governing body's approval.

The entity's budget is prepared on a diff'erent basis to the actual incorne and expencliture
disclosed in the financial statelnents. The flnancial statenleuts ale prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on tltc nature ot'expenses in the statement of f-rnanciaI performance ,

whet'eas the budgct is ltrcpared on a cash basis.'l-hc atnoullts in thc tlnancial statements wer.c
recast from the accrr.ral basis to the cash basis and rcclassified by prescntation to be on the same
basis as the altprovecl budgct. A conrpalist-rrr r:t'buclget ancl actual amounts, preparecl on a
cornparable basis tt-t the approvetl budgct, is thcn prcscnted in the staternent ot'cornparisorr ol'
bLrdget and actual an rounLs.

10
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Suntmary of Significant Accounting Policics (Continucd)

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustnrents to anrourlts in the financial statements are also
rnade for dilferences in the forrnats and classification schernes adopted for the preseutation of
the financial staternents and the approvecl budget.

A statenlent to reconcile the ac:tual anr()unts trrr a conrnalable basis irrclLrded in the staterrrent ol
cornparison of trudgct arrci actual aurounts lnrl thc ilcluals s pcr thc statcrlrcnt of financial
pcrforrnancc has bccn prcsentcd uncler scctiorr ol thcsc tlnancial statclnents.

c) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipnrent are slated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and
impainneut losses. Cost inclr-rdes expencirtr,rre that is clirectly attributable to the acquisition of
tlte iterrrs. When significant parts ol plopcrty, planl and equipnrcnt are lequit'ecl to be replaced
at intcr\/als. thc crrtity rccognizcs such Parts as indiviclual asscts witlr spccific usetul livcs and
depreciates thenr accordingly. Likewise, when a rna.iol inspection is perforrned, its cost is
recognized in the carrying arnount of the plaht and equipmerlt as a replacernent if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and lnaintenance costs are recognized in
sr.trplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
or nonrrnal consideration the asset is initrally nreasurecl at its fair valr.re.

d) Intangiblc Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially lecognized at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their lair value at the date of the exchange.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets arc carried at cost less any accurnulated
anroftization and accumulated impairnrcnt losscs. Intcrnally generatcd intangible assets,
excluding capitalized developrrrent costs, arc not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus ol deficit in tlre period in which lhc expencliture is rncurred.

The Lrseful lile of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Investrnent properties are measured initially at cosl. includirrg tlansactiorl costs. 1'he carlying
amount inclr.rdes the replacement cost of conrponcnts ol an existing investment property at the

tirne that cost is incurrcd if thc lccognition olitelia arc llrct and cxcluclcs thc costs ofday-to-day
rnairrtenance of an investrnent property. Investnrerrt pl'operty actluired through a uon-exchauge

transirctiorr is rrcasurcd at its thir valuc at thc clatc of acquisition. Sub.sequertt to initial
recognitiort, itlvcstmcnl properlies ore measurccl usirtg lhe cost ntodel aucl are depreciatecl over
an r)eor period or invcstmenl propet'l.v i.s ntco.tttccl al fair valuc v,itlt gain.s and lo,sses

rcatgnisccl thntugh.tLtrplus or de/icit.(ctrtit.t' t,, n,ur,rr, appropriatell,) [nvestnrent properties

ale derecoguizecl cither when they have lrcen clisposed of or when the investnrent ploperty rs

pcnnancntly withdrawn ll'orn usc and r.ro tutulc cconornic bcnefit oI selvice potcntial is

expected frorn its disposal. The diflerence between the net disposal proceeds and the canying
arnount of thc asset is recognized in the surplus or dcflcit in the pcriod of de-recognition.

-

11
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Summary of Signilicant Accounting policies (Continued)

l) Financial instruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classitlcation, measurernent and cle-recognition offinancial assets and
financial liabilities, introdtlccs ucw rulcs fbr hcdgc accounting and a ncw impairment model fbr
financial assets. Iirc enti0t doet nol hut:c ult,het!ge rclutions.hips ctntl therefbre fhe new hedge
accounting rules ltave no impocl on tlta Conrputlt's ./inancial slatement.\. (crmend cts
appropriate). A tlnancial instrutnent is any contract that gives risc to a flnancial asset ofonc
entity and a fiuancial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the
entity measures a flnancial asset or'financial liability at its fair vah.rc plus or rninus, in the case
ofa financial asset or llnancial liability not at f'air value through surplus or deficit, rransaction
costs that ale directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial
liability.

Financial asscts

Classilication of financial assets

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amonised cost, fair value
through net assets/ equity or fair valuc thlough surplus and deficir on thc basis of both thc
entity's lnanagelnent rnodel for tlrrarrcial assets anrl tlre contractual cash flow characteristics of
the llnancial asset' A financial asset is nrcasurcci at anrortize(l cost when the I'inancial asset is
held within a lllanagerllent trtoclel wht-rsc objccrive is to lrolcl linancial assets in order to collect
contractttal cash flows ancl the corltractual tcnus of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash ilows that are solely payrnents of plincipal and interest on the principal
outstanding. A financial asset is measurecl at lail value through net assets/ equity if it is held
within the management Inodel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contracrual
cashflows and selling financial assets and the conrractual tenns of the financial asset give rise
on specified clates to cash florvs that alc solelv paynrents ol prncipal arrd interest o1 the
principal alllol'l11t otrtstancling. A flnancirrl assct slrall be rreasulccl ar tirir value through surplus
or deficit ultlcss it is trleasttred at allrortrze(l cost or' [ail value through net assets/ ecluity unless
an entity ltas tnade itrcvocable clection at in itial recognirion fbr parricular. investments in equity
instruments.

S u bseq tren t nleils u t.e ur cn t

Based on the btrsirlcss tttotlcl artrl thc cuslr llow ehrrlucrcristics, rhe cntiry classifies its flnancial
assets into aurortized cost ol fair valLlc categories lbr financial iustrunlents. Movernents in t'air
value are presented in either sutplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain
criteria being rnet.

12
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Arnortized cost

Financial assets that ale held lor collectiorr of contlactual cash tlows where those cash flows

represent solely paynlents of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value

through surplus or dcficit, ale rneasuled at anlortizcd cost. A gain ol loss orr an instnrrnent that

is subsequently lneasured at arnortized cost arrd is uot part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss when tlre assct is de-rccognized or impaired. lnterest inconre frorr
these financial assets is included in finance inconre using the etfectrve iuterest rate rnethod.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that ale held lor collection of contractual cash llows ancl fol selling the

tlrrancial asscts, wherc thc asscts' cash llorvs rcprcscnt solcly paynrents of principal and

interest. are lneasured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movenleuts iu the carrying
aurollnt are takcn through net assets, cxccpl fbr tlrc recognition of irnpairment gains or losscs,

interest revenLle and loreigrr excharrge gains and losses which ale recognized in surplus/deficit.
Interest incorne frorn these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate rrretlrod.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not nreet the criteria fbl anrortized cost or fair value thror.rglr net assets/

equity are measured at lair value through sr.rrplus or deficit. A business nrodel where the entity
nranages financial assets with the objective of lealizrng cash flows through solely the sale ofthe
assets would result in a fair value through surplus or cleficit rnodel.

Trade and other rcceivables

Tlade and other receivablcs arc recoguized at tirir valucs less allowances lor any uncollectitlle
anrounts. Tradc aud othcr rcceivablcs arc asscssccl for inrpairrnent on a continuing basis. An
estirnate is nrade of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding anrounts at the

ycar end.

Inrpairment

The entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis. thc cxpectcd creclit loss ('ECL') associated

with its financial assets carried at arlortizcd cost arrd lirir value through net assets/equity. The

cntity rccogrrizcs a loss allowancc for sucli losscs ut cach rcporting date. Clitical cstirnatcs and

significant judgments rnade by managenrent in deternrining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

set out ill Nole xx.

-r

IJ

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policics (Continued)
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Signilicant Accou n ting Policics (Contirrue tl)

Financial lia bilitics

Classlllcation

The entity classifies its liabilities as subsecprently measured at amortized cost except for
financial liabilities ureasured through protit or loss.

g) I n ven to ries

Inventoly is Incasltrcd at cost upon rnitral rccognition. To thc cxtcnt that invcntor.y was
received through non-exchange transactions (tbr no cost or for a nomitral cost), the cost of the
inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,
as follows:

Raw ntatelials: lturcltasc cosl usins rhc rvcighted itvet.age cost r.nethod

Finished goods and wolk irr progress: cost oldirect rnaterials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based or1 the nonnal operating capacity, but exaluding
borrciwing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is rneasured at the lower of cost and ner realizable value.
However, to the extent that a class ol inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal chalgc, that class of invcntoly is rrrcasulccl ut thc lolvcr of cost ancl cun'cllt rcplaccllrcnt
cost.Net rcalizable value is the cstirnatcd sclling pricc in the ordinary coursc ot'operarions, less
tlle estimated costs of cornpletion and the estinrated costs necessary to lnake the sale, exchange,
or distributiorr. Inverrtories are recognized as an expense when deployed fbr utilization or
consurnption in the ordinary course ol oper.ations ol tlie Entity.

h) Provisions

P|ovisions at'e recognized when tlre Entrrv has a prcsent obligation (legal or constructive) as a
restrlt of a past e vellt, it is probable that arr oLrtllow uf rcsoulccs ernboclying econouric beneltts
or setrrice potential will be requirecl to scttle the obligation and a leliable estirnate can be lrade
of the atnottnt of thc obligation. Where thc Entiry cxpects some ol' all of a provision to bc
reitnbursed, fbr exarnple, undct'an insulancc contract, thc rcimbursernent is recognizcd as a
separate asset only when the reirrrbursenrent is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is preserrted in the statenrerrt ol' flnancial perfbrrtrance net ol any reinr bursernent.

i) Social Benefits

Social bencf rts arc caslt tt'ansf cls plovidccl to i) spccitic individuals and / or. houscholds tl.rat

meet the eligibility criteria, ii) rnitigate the el'l'ects ol'social risks and iii) Address the need of
society as a whole. 1'he entity recogniscs ir social bcnefit as an expense lor tlre social benefit
schenre at the sarle titne that it lecognises l liability. The liability tbr the social benetlt scherne
is measttred at the bcst estimate of the cost (the social benefit payrnents) that the entity will
incur in firlfilling thc plescnt obligations rcpr.cscntcd by the liability.

14
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Summurl, of'Significtnt Accounting Policie s (Continued)

.i) Contingcnt liabilities

The Entity tloes not recognize a contingent asset. but discloses details ofa possible asset whose
existetrce is corrtingent ort the occurrencc ol' norl-occulrence of one or more uncertain future
evcnts rlot wholly rvithin the contlol o1'thc llrrtrtv rn thc notcs to thc financial statcntcnts.
Corrtingcnt asscls aIc assesscd continually to cnsule that dcvcloprncnts al'c appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. If it has .beconre virtually certain that an inllow of
econonric benefits or service potential will arise ancl the asset's value can be measured reliably,
the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statelnents of the period in
wltich the change occuls.

k) Naturc and purposc of'rcscrvcs

The Entity crcatcs aucl nraintairrs rcscrvcs irr tcrrrrs ol specific [cquirculctits. Ettlitt, to ,slate Ihe
rescrves naitttained and appropriate policie.s adopted.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estinrates

The Entity recogrrizes thc effects ofchanges in accor.rrrting policy retrospectively. The eflects
of changes iti accounting policy arc applicd plos;:rectively if letrospectivc application is
inrpractical.

m) Employee benefits - Retirement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirernent benefits for its ernployees and directors. Defined contribution
plans arc post-employrncnt benefit plarrs undeluvhich au entity pays fixcd contributions into a
scparate cntity (a fund) and '"vill havc no lcgal or constructivc obligation to pay furthcr
contrrbutions il'thc firnd does rrol holtl srrlllcicnt asscls to pay all enrplovee [rerrcfits relating to
cntployce scrvicc in lhe culrent llrtl 1;r'ror' pcriorls' I lrc contributions to lirnd obligations lor the
paylnent of lctireurent benefits arcr chargctl agairrsl incourc in thc: ycar in which they bcconre
payablc.

Defined benefit plans are post-ernployment benelit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit creclit
rnethod basis. Dcflcits idcntificd arc rccovcrccl tlrror.rgh lurrrp sun'r paynrcuts ol increascd futnlc
contributions on prollol'tional basis to all parricipatirrg enrployers. l'he contributions and lunrp
sr.u1r paynrents reducc thc post-enrp loyrrrent lrclcllt obligatiorr.

IE

-

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability brrt discloscs details olany contingencies in
the notes to the financial stateurents. unless the possibility ol an outflow ol resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is lernote.

Contingent assets

'--
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Summary of SigniJicunt Accounting policias (Continued)

n) Foreign cu rrency transactions

Transactions in lbreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate ot'exchange on
the date of the trarlsaction. Trade crcditors or debtors denorninated in-foreign .u.r.n.! ur.
reported at the statenlent ol financial posrtiorr reportirlg date by applying the exchange rale on
that date. Exchange differences arising fi'om tlic settlement oi.r..iittr.Jor fr.orn the-reporting
ofcreditors at rates ditlerent fi'orn those at rvhich they were initially r".oid.d during the period]
are recognized as incorrre o'expenses in the period in which they ar.ise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs al'e capitalizcd against clualitying asscts as part ot' propcr-ty, plant a,d
equipment. Sttch borrowing costs are capitalizecl over rlre period during wtrictrine assit is being
acquired or constrttcted and borrowings have been incun'ed. Capltalization ceases when
construction of the asset is cornplete. Furthel borrowing costs are charged to the statemellt of
financial performance.

P) Relatcd parties

The Entity regalds a related party as il l)crsou ol an cntity with the ability te cxert control
individually or jorntly, ot'to exercise signilicanr inlluence over the Entiiy, or vice versa.
Mcmbers of kcy rnanagcment arc regardccl as lclatcd parties and cornpr.ise ihe directors, ttre
CEO and senior managers.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash ctlLtivelcttts cotttpt'isc cash trrr hlnti urrrl caslr at bank, sSqrt-tcrp.r tlcposits on call
and higlrly licltricl invcstntcnts rvith an olu.lrrrll rrurulity of thlcc rrrontlrs gr. lcss, w6ic5 arc
readily convertible to kltown atttoulrts of clsh anti lrc r,,b.j..t to insigniticant risk of changes in
value' Bank account balances inctude arrounts held ar the Centr-al Bank of Kenya a-nd at
various cotnmercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial
statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests apd advances to
authorised public officers and/or institutions which wcre not surrendered or accountcd tbr at
the encl of thc firrancial ycar.

r) Conrparative ligu res

Where neccssaly comparativc fltgures fbr thc prcvious financial year have beel amcnded or
reconfigured to conform to the requirccl changcs in prcscntation.

16
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Summury of Signi./icant Accortnting Policias (Cotrtinued)

5. Signilicant ,iudgrnents and sources ol'cstinration unccrtainty

The prepalation of the Entity's financial statenlents in conformity wittr IPSAS requires
rnauagelnent to nrake.judgrnents, estimates ancl assurnptions that affect the reported anrounts of
revellues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure ofcontingent Iiabilities, at the end
of the rcporting pcliod. Howcvcr. unccrlairrty about thcsc assumptions and estirnates could
lcsult in outcorllcs that rccltrirc a r1'ratclial rrd.jrrstrrrcrrt to thc carrl,lpg alroul'lt of thc asset or'

liability attbctcd in firtr.n'c pcriorls.

State alljudgenrents, estirnates and assurrrptrons rtracle e.g.

a) Estimates and assumptions -
Thc kcy assurnptions concerrring the tirturc anrl othcr kcy sources of cstirrration r.rnccrtainty at
the leporting date. that have a significant risk ot'causing a nratelial adiustnrent to the canying
arlrounts of assets and liabilities withrn tlre next llnancial year, are described below. Tlre Entity
based its assunrptiorls and estinrates on pal'anleters available when the consolidated financial
statemerlts were prepared. However, existing circurnstances alld assumptions about future
developments rnay change due to market clranges or circurnstances alisirrg beyond the control
of the Entity. Such changes arc reflectcd in the assurnptions when they occur. IPSAS I . 140.

b) Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives anci residual values ol assets arc assessed using tlre Ibllowing indicatots to
inf<rrrn potcntial futulc use and value fronr disposal:

l.Thc conditron of thc assct bascd olr tho asscssnrcrrt o1'cxpcrts enrploycd by thc E,ntity

ii.The naturc of thc asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to clranges in technology and
processcs

iii.Thc nature of tlre proccsses in which thc assct is clcploycd

iv.Availability of funding to lcplacc thc assct

V.Changes in thc r-uarkct in rclation to thc assct

c) Provision s

Provisions were raised and managenrent deterurined an estimate based on the infonnation
available. Additional disclosurc of thcsc cstiuratcs olprovisions is inclr,rdcd in Note xxx.

Provisions are ureasured at the ulanagcurent's bcst cstinlatc of the cxpencliture required to settle
thc obligatirx at thc rcporting datc antl alc <liscorrrtlcrl to ploscnt valtrc rvhclc the cffcct is
material.

-

t/
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6. Notes To The Financial Statements

l. Public contributions and donations

2. Transfers from County Government

l ol:rl

3. Fines,Penalties and other Income

4. Emplovee Costs

Staff Training Experrses

jl1',000r0q!.! l
'70 000 000

Donation Fron-r Deve loprnent pirrtner.s
I 450,060

Contributions From 'l he I)ublic

Total
I,450,060

Transfers From Counry Govr. -Operattons 30,000,000 70 000 000
Payments By County On Behalf Of The Entity

Unconditional Developrnent grants

'I'otal Other Income

lncotne fi'orrr Salt. ol'.l errtlcr [)ocurrrcrrt:

Bad debts recovercd

Salaries And Wages

Staff Gratuity
525,07 t 614,590

614,590
'l'otal

'1 8

525 071

I)cscrip(ion
liY

Kshs

I;Y 2()22t2023 FY 202ti2,022

I(sh s

Kshi

20?nDtl23FY , r IiY 2021

Kshs

t'y 202U2022

.Kshs.



l'he Kakamega (iounty Malcrnal (.bilrl Il*rit h rrrrl liarnily I)lanning I.und
,4nntral Report and Financial Statements for the vear ended ,Iune 3(), 2023

5. Use of Goods and Services

206,743

(These Components of U.te ol Goods and sen'ices hat,e becn
template of reporting)

reclassified accorcling to tlte prescribed

6. Depreciation and Amortization Expcnsc

Cornputcr

Motor vehicle

I,385,453
(These Components of Depreciation and tlntortization expense har.,e been
thc prescribed te mplate of'reporting)

reclo s.tified accordi ng to

7. Cash Transfcr to i\{others

l8 383 347

I8..183.347 40,909,430

(Th is Componcrtt of Ca.rh Transfer to l4otharr ho.r lx,r'rt .\eporota(l fi'nm rt.rc of gootl.s and,rert'ice3 lo a
.tePorote litrc ilun occot dirtg to tltc prt'scriltrtl tt,tnltltttt, ol.n,lxtrtittg)

General Office Expenses |,424,t96 t,81.2,502
Ilospitality/Conferences, Boards and conlmittees 1,883,950 2,578,307

Motor vehicle Insurance 1\74 7,534

355,898

71,805

3,674,681
Telephonc And Conrrnuntcatron l-.x pcrrsc s

Plrnling Arrrl SlaLiorrclv
j,-sl2,500

-t

F uel

[]ank Chargcs

Maintenance of Motor veh icles

350,003

84.392

5,768,725
gStaff Tlainin 350,620

Subscri ption

109,750

7e3.900

5,144,789 16,937,285

Maintainance of other a sset s

Systern admin istration exltcnses

Doruestic Travel, Acc<tnturodation ancl Dsa
Total

Other Operating Expe nses

14,924,577 -r2,380,892

Furnitulc and Fittings I t5,406 187,566

I 270 04,1 3,91 l,076

484,44't

4,581,0tt9

40,909,430Cash Transfer to Mothers
'l-ota 

I

-

19

ltY 2022t2023 tv 242u2022
Kshs. Kshs.

Descriptiorr

__1t?01
7l I .4R8

33,400

823,862

L____

Dcscrlptlog
Ity 2022t2023.

I(shs.

Tota I

FY 2022t2023

Kihs
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T'he Kakarncga (.lor.rrrlv l"'l:rlrr.rral ( lrii,r i:,.1irr
.A,rttrual I{eliiii:t itrt!,.1 i':lixil,irur liritt,-,.rr,..:i , ,,. I

I

ar.i iranrili- l,larrring Iiund
'. :,. slrde(l ,lune -)0.2l)21

On - Call Deposits

Current Account I 1,576,013 16,244,845
Others (Specdy)-Mpesa

1g 75?

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents 12,043,602

467,589

16,284,,597

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivalents are as follows

9. Accounts Receivables

Firrlncial institution /\ccount trutnbcr KShs
c) Current zlcco u nt

Ken a Cornn-rercial bank 1148241272 II,576,0r3
Sub- total I I ,576,013
Short term cash irnprcst
M-Pesa 8235 r 0
Sub- total

467 58
Grand total 12,043,602

Opening Accourrts Receivables As At l', .lulyA 80 000
osing Accounts ReceivablesAs Ar 30'h June ll

(Disclosed in statcnrent of Financial

CI

positi0n ) 488,000 80 000
Changcs ln Accounrs t{cccivablcs
(Disclosed in the Cnshtk)w statemcnt) 408 000 80 000

20

pgsclipttgq
2022t2023: ,FV;a0VL12022

Ksht Iishl

:FY
+--_:;-*__;___:-:;_:_

', ', Kshs ,'1

461,589



The Kakameg:l County .\Iaternal Child llealth and Family Planoing Fund

Annual Report lnd Financial St:rtetuettts for the Year ended Jrrne -i0. 20:'i

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Property, plant and equipment

Di sa ls

Transfers/Ad Llstlllcn l s

..\t 30th Junc 2021

r\dditions

reciation rtnd I nr a irment

I1,379,905 14,618'2181,300,525r,937,788At I't July 2021

4,461.101200,001Additions

19,082.6 l e1.917.788

I 9,0ti2,6 l9

t 5,644,305

15,64{,-1051,9i7 788

Transfer/Ad-l ustmcn ts

15.'644,305r,937,788 1,,500,526At 30th Junc 2023

6,6s3,042 8,496,092r ,453,34 IAt I st July 202 I

3,9t t,076 4,583,089484,441Dcprcciation

i89 709

187 s66

Impairment

10,564,I I 8 13,079,181577,275r,937,788At 30th June2072

21

At l'( Julv 2022

Disposals

Land and
llrrildings :

Vehicle

KShsKSha I(ihs

4,264,400

19,0{t2,619

I

I

1,s00,526

!.s!q,s2!



The Kakamega Countv NIa(ernal Child Health and Family planning Furrd
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the vcar ended June 30. 102-l

At lst Julv 2022 1,937,799 577,275 10,564,1 I ll 13,079,191

recratronD I 15,406 t,270,047

I)is osals

Irn a lnnenl

Transfcr/Ad u stmcn t

At 30th June 2023

Net Book Valucs

I 453

Ar 30rh .lunc 21122

692 681

923,25)

II 165 l2 526 846

003 438I lt;5,080

-1
At 30'h June 2023 807,u15-t 3,8t0 ,l .l(| 4 6t 7,985

The Depreciation rates adopted by Kakamega Countv Matemal Child Healrh and Family Planning Fund are 25o% Arrrruallv on
Motorvehicle ,12.5o/o Annually on Furniture and fittings ,25%o Annually on Cornputer and offie cquipnrents.The Fund dcprcciates the assets on a
reducing Balance Method.

I22



The Kakamega County N'Iaternal Child llealth and Farnily Planning Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements lbr thc year ended June 30,2023

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

I I . Related pa rty l)a la nccs

a) Nature of related part1, relationslrips

Entities aud other parties related to the Fund includc those parlies who have ability to exercise
control or excrcise significant influencc ovcr its operating and financial decisions. Related
parties inclr"rde n'ranagenlent personnel, tlrcil rssociates aud close fantily nrenrbers. The
lund/schenre is related to the lbllowirrp crrlirics:

a)

b)
c)
d)

The County Gove rrr nr c n t:
The Parcnt County Govclnnrcnt M inistry:
Kcy management;
Board of Trustees; etc.

b) Related partv transactions

d) Duc front rclntcd grartics

'f ota I

Z3

Tlansfers Flor-n Related Parties'

Transfers To Related Parties

Board Of Trustees

I(ey Marragernent Cornpensation
-I-ota 

I

Due Fronr Parent Ministry

Due From County Govemment

-

c) Kct,rnanagerncnt rcnr u ncratio n

I

Descrlptlon
FY 2022t2023

Kshs

FY 202u2022

Kshs

FY 2A2A2023 rY 202U202?,

Kshs
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The Kakamega county Maternar child Health and Family planning Fund
Annual Report and Financiar statements rbr the year ended June 3d, 2023

Notes'l' o'l'hc Fin a lt cia I S tl terne rr ts (Corr tin uc<l)

13. Financial risk rnanage rnent

The Fund's activities expose it to a varicty of flnancial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Fund's overall risk-management programme
focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seiks to minimise the
potential adverse effect of such risks on its perlorrnance by setting acceptable levels of risk.
The Fund does not lteclr:e any lisks and has in place policies to ensLrrt that cre6it is onlv
extended to cLtstoutcl.s r.r,ith an cstablishctl cr.cdrt hisrory.

The Fund's financial lisk managcurcnt olrjccrivcs ancl policies are detailed below:

a) Credit risk

The Fund has exposttre to credit risk, which is the risk rhat a counterparty will be r.rnable to pay
alllotlnts in (trll rvhcn clLrc. Crctlit tisl< itt iscs lirrur cush autl cash ccluiuulcnts, an(l (leposits witi.l
banks, as rvcll ls tt'ittlc itttr.l trlltct tcee rr rrble s lrntl irvailablc-lbr-salc I-rnancial ir.lvcstrncnts.
Mitttagcurctrt ttsscsscs thc clcclit r;Lralrtr Ol caci'r custorDcr', takrng into accor.lnt its tlnancial
position, past experience and otlrer tirctors. Individual risk linrits al.e set based on internal or
extemal assessment in accordance lvith Iirnits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the
statement of financial position are net of allowauces for doubtful receivables, estimated by the
elltity's managemellt based otr prior experience and their assesslnent of the curre,t eco,omic
environntent. The carrying arrlount of financial assets recorded in the financial statelnents
rcprcsenting thc entity's t.ttitxit.tturn cxlx)sLnc to clutlit risk without takirrg account 6f thc value
of'any collatcral obtuinccl is rnaclc Lrlt as lollorvs:

At 30 June 2022

Receivables F rorn [ixchurrgc
Transactions

Receivables From Non-Exchange
Tlansactions

Bank Balances

l'otal

24

Dcscription.
'I'ota I

1rmo unt
Kshs

Fully
performing
Kshs :

Past duc
Kshs

Impaircd
Kshs



Thc Kakamega County i\'laternal Child tlealth and Falnily Planning Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for thc year ended June 30,2023

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continucd)

Thc custotnct's unclcr tlrc firllr,pcrtolrttirrt (rirlcr:or'\,;rrr: pavirrrl thcil dc[ts as thcy coltitluc
tt'ading. The credit lisk associatccl u,itlr tlrcsc lcccir,ablcs rs rrrinirlal arrd the aliowance fbr
tuncollectible anlour.lts that thc cntity has rccogrrisod rn thc lrnarrcial staterrrents is considered
adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable alnourlts.

The entity has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from xxxx

The board ol trustees sets the Fund's credit policies arrd objectives and lays down parameters
withirr rvhiclr the various aspects of cle<lit risli rnarrirrrcnrcrrt are o1'reratcd.

lt) Liquidity rish nranagement

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rnanagernent rests with the Fund Administrator, who
has built au appropriate liquidity risk managernent frarnework for the managernent of the
entity's short, rnedium and long-tenrl funding and liquidity lnanagerneut requilements. The
entity ntanagcs liquidity risk through contirrrrous nronitorins ol forecasts arrd actual cash flows.

Thc tablc trclorv rc1-rlcscrtts cash l-lor.vs payahlc bv lhc I;urrcl urrdcl norr-tlerivativc tlnancial
liabilities by thcir rcnrainrng cor.ttlactual rnatLrritics at thc rcportirrg clatc. Thc anlol-ltlts disclosed
in the table ale the contractual undiscounted cash tlows. Balances due withirr l2 months equal
their carlying balances, as the inrpact ofdiscounting is not significant.

Ernployee [-]enefi t Obl igation

At 30 .lune (Current FY)

Trade Payables

Cunent Portion Of Borrowings

Provisions

Tota I

-

25

'tcss than I
lnon th

Betwcen 1-3
rnonths

Ovcr 5
nronths Total

KshsKshs Kshs Kshs
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The Kakamega county Maternat chird Health and Famiry pranning Fund
Annual Report and Financial statements lbr thc year ended June lo, zozl

Notes To 1'he F-inancial Statemeuts (Contirtuecl)

c) Market risk

The board has put in place au intetnal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk taced by thc
entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate ancl test the design and effectiv-eness of its intemal
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is tlre risk arising ti'orr charrges in urarket prices, such as interest rate, equity prices
and fbreign exchange rates which will all'cct thc enrity's inconre or the value of its'ho[ding of
tinallcial iustt'tttnettts. The objective ol' uralket risk rnanagement is to manage and coutrol
market risk cxposul'es within acceptabie paramctels, while optilnising the relurn. Over.all
responsibility for rnanaging market risk rcst,s with thc Audit and Risk Management Cornmittee.

The Fund's Finance Departlrent is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policics (subject ro review ancl approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day-to-day irnplementation of thosc policies.

Therc has been no change to the entity's cxposure to rnalket risks or the rnanner in which it
manages and nreasures the risk.

i. Foreign currency ris l<

The entity has transactional cun'ency cxposures. Sr.rch exposule arises through purchases of
goods and services that are done in currencies other ihan the local cun.ency. Invoices
denominated in foreign currencies ale paid alier 30 days tiorn the date of the invoice and
conversion at the tinle of paynrent is done using tlre prcvailing exchange ratc.

The carrying alllottltt ttl' the entity's lirrcirlu curcucy denonrinated nronctary assets and
lnonetary tiabitities at tlte encl ol'the rep.rti.u periocl are as fbllows:

l-iabilitics

i\t 30 June (Currerrt FY)

Financial Assets

lnvestrnents

Cash

Debtors/ Receivables

26

Ecscrlption

Kshs

0thcr .,'

ourrcncios

Kshs Kihs
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The Kakamega County Maternal Child Ilealth and Family Planning Fund
Annual Report and Financinl Statenrcnts lbr thc I'car endctl ,lune.l0'2023

20. Anncxcs

Anuex l: Progress on Follorv Up Of Prior Year Auditor's ll,ecommendations

The loltowing is the surnrnary of issues laised by tlre external auditor, and managemerlt colnrreuts

that were provided to the auditor.

Unsupported Mpesa Balance The stateurent of
financial position reflccts a cash and cash
equivalcnts ba la nce ot'Kshs, I (r,284,597 whiclr
as disclosetl rn Note 8 to the flnancial
statellrents, includes an arnount of Thc Mpcsa statentent

Iras s ince been

plovided.

Kshs.39,752held in Mpesa account. Horvevcr N/A
the balance was not suppoftcd by an Mpcsa
statement as at 30 June, 2022. ln t\e
circumstances, the accuracy arrd contpleteness
of thc cash and cash cquivalcnts balance of
Kshs. I (r.284,5 97 as at 30 June, 2022 could not
be confirmecl.
Accuracy of the Financial Statements- Gerreral
Expenses Thc statenrent of financial
pcrfonnance rcflccls an atnoul'rt of
Kshs.3 6,963,9fiI in respect ofgenelal
expenscs. However, Note 5 to the financial
statcnrents rcfl ccts orrcsponding
amor.rnts totaling Kshs.32,3 tiO,892. The
variance of Kshs.4,583,089 has not beerr
ex lained or reconciled
Conrparativc Balarrces
The statemcnt of financial perfonrrancc rcflccts
comparative tigures ol Kshs.32,945,834 antl
Kshs.(34.482,97 l) in respcct of gcneral
cxpcnscs arrd dcficit for thc prior ycar
rcspcctively, whilc thc auditcd finarrcial
statemerrts tbr the year ended 30 June, 202 I

leflcct closing balances of Kshs.32,945,921 and
Kshs.(34,483,05 8), resulting in
variances of Kshs.87 antl Kslrs.87 respectively.
Tlre variances have not been explairrerl or
reconciled. Sinrilarly. the stateulent of llnancrlrl
position lctlccts a colnpal'ativc lralancc o l'

Kslts.2 I ,244,5tt(r in lcspcct ol'cash arrrl clslr
equivalents while the auditctl tlnirncial
statements for the year ended 30 June, 202 1

rcflcct a closing balance of Kshs.2l ,244,499.
The variance of Kshs.87 has also not been

Thc Marraqcrrrcnl has

sirtcc plcparctl arr

a rnrncrrtlcd Fina nc ial

report and Statenrents

The Managernent has

since prepared an

anrrrrcntled Financial
rcport ar'rd Statcnlcrlls

Rcsolvcd

bv scrratc

Resolved

[ry senate

N/A

N/A2.2

cx laincd or lccorrciled

l)rior Yeal Adjustntent cl'r'rcnt has

rerrt of financial position ltrr lhe ycar' sincc Jrrcpa red arr

27

__l____
I Ttrc Manag

2..1

Basis for Qualificd opinion

Rcsoh,cci

by senatc

-

Rcsolvccl N/A

Il e fc rcnce

\o. on the

c\tcrntI
ir trdit

Ilanagcrrrcrrt
conrmon(s

Strtu si
(lluoh'ed '

llasolvd)

. ..Timeframe:
(Put n dute u'hen

,t'ou t!.tpccl tltc
issua to hc
'resolved)

Issuc I Obscrvations from Auditor
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Basis for Qualilicd opinion
ended 30 June,202l reflected a prior year
adjustment balance of Kshs .13,272,Z3lundcr
net assets while the statelnent of financial
position for the ycar ended 30 June,2022
reflccts a nil pt iol year. adjustnrent balance. No
explanation ol sr.r1>por.ti r:g docrrrrrcnts wcr.c
providcd orr lrorv thc lralanco was clcarctl
during the year undcl revicw

Staternent of Cash Flows

anrnrended Financial
reporl and Statements

Thc Managcrrcnt has

s tlec 1ltc1;lrtctl lr rr

r lll]tct)(lc(l l.'il|irrre itr l

rcp()rt :lnd Statcnrents

'l'he Managenre nt has

s irtcc 1;r'cpulcrl an

lrrrtrtrerrclcd Financial
rcllort l n(l Statcntcnts

'l'he OLrtstanding

inrprcsts is carrictl
Iirrrvrrd fi'ont

20 I 8i20 l9 FY .This

arllounts was

llcso lvetl

Itcso lvcd N/A

The statement olcash florvs for the vear ended
30 June,2022 reflects a depreciation anrourrr of
Kshs.4,5 fl3,0ti9, which is a non-cash itcnr.-l-lrc,

I statcntent ol'clrslr tlows is strltlto:cd to lcllccl
i ()nly iterns lhirt rrrvolYc irctUill tlr)u, ol etrslt or

cash cclLrivalcrrts. !rr tlrc cir.crrnrstarrccs. (lrr
accuracy ot'tltc statcutct.lt ot' lirrancial
pertbrnrance, sratetnent ol' tinancial positiorr
and statetnent ofcash flows could not be
confirmed.
Other Matter
Budgetat'y Control arrd Pertbnrance
The statenlcnt of cornpalison of bLrdget and
actual ar]-loutrts Ictlccts an approvcd r.cccipts
budger o l' Ks hs.92,000,000 and acrual rccciprs
of Kshs.7 1,450,060 or. 78o/o. However, rro
explanation was provided for the shorrlhll ol'
Kshs.2O,549,94 0, or 22olo of the budget. This
may have irnpactcd ncgatively on achicving thc
objective for which rhe Fund was
established. ln addirion, the staletnent rellecls
actual rcccipts ot Kslrs.T 1,45U,060 irrrti irclrurl
cxpentliturc o t' Kshs.7tt,4tt8,(X) I rcsultirrg ro
over'-expcnrliturc ol' Kshs.?,0J7,94I. No
evidence was provicled to confirm that the
excess expenditurc was approved by rhc
County Assernbly, as required by Regulation
I l2 of the Public Finance Managemcnt
(County Covernments) Regulations, 2015,
rvhich recluires an accounting ofllccr to obrain
approval of thc County Assembly wherr lrc
tl nds he has s cnt nrorc than the total vote
Basis lbr conclusiotr

Outsranding lmprests
As leportcd in thc 1;rcviorrs ycal., thc stitlcnlcDt
of t'inancial position rcflects a balarrcc t.rl.

Kshs.ii0,000 in lespect to accouuts receivutrle
which, as disclosed in Nore 7 to the linancial

\

statements
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i : Tlrhefi'arne:
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Basis for Qualified opin ion

2

30.lune, 2022. However, records rnaintained try
the Fund indicatc that the inrprest had bccn
outstanding lor lhrec (l) ycars. No cxplanatiorr
was providcd on rvhy thc Funtl had not
recovered the inrprests
from the defaulting officers. Tlris is contraly to
Regulation 93((r) of thc Public Financc
Managemcnt (County Governl:rcnts)
Regulations, 201 5.

ln lhc circrrrrrstanccs. Managcrl,)cnt was in
brcac h of thc lau,.

Failure of Managcrnent Conrnriltee to I lolrl
Quartcrly Mcctings A lcvicw oI thc FLrncl's

rccolds rcvealed that dr,rring the year undcr'
revicw, the Fund Managemcnt did not hold any
rneeting. Tlris is contrary to Section 25(l) ofthe
Kakamega Counry Matenral Child Health and
Family Planning Act, 201 7, which lcquilcs
Managerncnt ol'thc [:unri to hold orrc nrcclins

requested for an

actiV ity to suppon
( o rrt rrr Lrn it y Ilcalllr
Voluntcers,Thc ol'fi ccr

has since Icft the

scrvice. Management

under thc county
Treasury is in the

process of recoveritt g

llrL nrrrrt ics orvcrl.

Thc issue has been

takcn up by the Chief
Officcr Medical

Scrv icc ancl the Board

is Sclrcdulcd to sil in

Thc Managcnrerrt has

s incc plcparcd an

arnircndcd Fina ncial

reporl il nd Statentents

Rcsolvctl N/A

Partly

Rcsolvcd
N/A

l

eve ry three nronths to review the progress antl i thc l-.\, 202312024
perfonnance ol the Furrd.
ln the circunrstances, Managerttetrt was in
breach of the law.
A review of the financial statements revealed
the following lratters where the financial
statements were not prepared in accordance
rvith lhc rcqrrilerncllts ol'tlrc lcporlirrr
ten.tplate isstrerl by thc l)rrtllic Seclor
Accounting Stantlalds Roard. Tlrc statcncrlr ()l'

financial pcr[ornrancc is rrot rcflccted irr thc
table of contcnts, whilc the facc of thc llnancral
statements indicates the rrarne of the Fund as

Connty Government of Kakarnega Matemal
Child Hcalth and Fanrily Planrring Fund
although thc cnabling Act indicatcs thc narrrc ns

Kakantega (lounty Matemal Chilcl [{calth and
Fantily Planning Fund. FLrrther, depreciatiorr ol'
Kshs.4.581,089 is not rliscloscd in thc statcntcnt
o[ finarrcial pclforrlarrcc as a sepalatc itcrrr.
lnstearl, it is includecl undel general expenses.
The report of trustees on page XIX is also not
signed by the Chair of the Board. ln addition,
the colunrns in thc statcnlent ofcornparison of
budgct and actual amounts indicatc thc pcriod
under revieu, as2020I 2021 instead of

I 202lr12022.ltwas also obscrvcd that Notc 9 lo
thc financial statenlcnts on plope y. plant arrd

cquipnrcnt irrdicatcs the datc of thc closing
balance of l(shs.6,003,439 as at 30 June, 202 I

-

'!---'

Re fc re nce

No. on thc

crtcrnlt
audit 

.

llcpo rt

' lssuc / Obscrvntlons from Auditor
ll a nagc nrcnt

comrnorrts -

Sttrtus:

1llasolvetl

. (.Ngr *;'
Resolvcd)

'I irn c t r':r rrr c:

(Pul u lull wlnn

. 
y|,u expect the.

tssuc l0 be
' rcsolt,etl)
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Basis lirr Qualilied o piniorr
instead of 30 June,2022
ln the circurnstances, the financial statemcnts
do not conforrn to thc requirements of thc
reporting template issued by the Internarional
Pub lic Sectol Accolrnt irtg Sta!- dar d.s lSoanl.

Fund M anage v Accor,rnrj ng O ll rcer
(rb-f,171'4'{

. I l^
D a te....l.L.l.Y.. l. l.. :.:.... :.............
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Annex II: Inter-Fund Conlirmation Letter
The Kakamcga County Matemal Chitd Health and Family Planning Fund

The The Kakamega County Matemal Child Health and Family Planning Fund wishes to confirm the anrounts disbursed to you as at 30th June 2023
as indicated in the table below. Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table

below Please sign and stamp this request in the space provided and retum it to us.

Arnounts Disbursed by [SC/SAGA/Fundl (Kshs) as at 306 Junc 20xx

Dcvelopment (B) lnter M inisterial
(c)

Total
(D):(A+B+C)

Amount Receive d by

[beneficiary Fund]
(KShs) as at 30'h

Junc 202i
(L)

Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Di fferences
(KShs)

(F)-(D-E)
6780 t01 5t912023 10.000.000 30,000,000

Total -r0,000'000 30,000,000

ln confinn that thc amounts shorvn above are corrcct as of the date indicatcd

o? |.ors. . .. Date,Lv ISignlLi a7 I
Head of Accountants department of beneficiary Fund

31

Rccurrent (A)

<.-.-

.,!r..["., K.,*(!r.......Name.
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Anncx III: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditurcs

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4

32

Project
Namc

: Project
. Description

Project
Activities

____l
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Annex IV: Rcporting on Disaster N{anagement Expcnditure

33

I

(lolurnn V Column VI Colun-rn
VII

Arnourit
(Kshs.)

Comrnents

l


